UNITED STATESOF AMERICA
BEFORE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

COMMISSIONERS: Robert Pitofsky, Chairman
SheilaF. Anthony
Mozelle W. Thompson

Orson Swindle
Thomas B. Leary
)
In the Matter of )
)
AmericaOnline, Inc., )
acorporation, )
) Docket No. C-3989
and )
)
Time Warner Inc., )
acorporation. )
)
COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act and of the Clayton Act,
and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Acts, the Federa Trade Commission (the
“Commission”), having reason to believe that respondents AmericaOnline, Inc. (*AOL"), a
corporation, and Time Warner Inc. (“Time Warner”), a corporation, both subject to the
jurisdiction of the Commission, have agreed to merge, in violation of Section 7 of the Clayton
Act, asamended, 15 U.S.C. § 18, and Section 5 of the Federa Trade Commission Act, as
amended, 15 U.S.C. § 45, and it appearing to the Commission that a proceeding in respect
thereof would be in the public interest, hereby issuesits Complaint, stating its charges as
follows:

|. Respondent America Online, Inc.

1. Respondent AOL is a corporation organized, existing, and doing business under and by
virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, with its office and principa place of business
located at 22000 AOL Way, Dulles, Virginia. AOL operates two internet service
providers (“1SPs’): AOL, the nation’s leading ISP, and CompuServe. In addition, AOL
operates such internet brands as Digital City, Inc.; ICQ); the Netscape Netcenter and
AOL.com internet portals, the Netscape Communicator client software, including the



Netscape Navigator browser; AOL MovieFone, the nation's top movie listing guide and
ticketing service; and Nullsoft, Inc., developer of the Spinner, Winamp, and SHOUT cast
brands.

Respondent AOL is, and at al times relevant herein has been, engaged in commerce, or
in activities affecting commerce, within the meaning of Section 1 of the Clayton Act, as
amended, 15 U.S.C. § 12, and Section 4 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as
amended, 15 U.S.C. § 44.

Il. Respondent Time Warner Inc.

Respondent Time Warner is acorporation organized, existing, and doing business under
and by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, with its office and principa place of
businesslocated a 75 Rockefeller Plaza, New York, New York. Time Warner operates a
variety of businesses, including cable television systems; cable television networks, such
asHBO, Cinemax, CNN, TNT, and TBS Superstation; magazine franchises, including
Time, People, and Sports lllustrated; copyrighted music that is produced and distributed
by record labels such as Warner Bros. Records, Atlantic Records, Elektra Entertainment,
and Warner Music Internationd; and film, television, and animation libraries owned or
managed by Warner Bros. and New Line Cinema. Some of Time Warner’'s cable
systems, HBO, Cinemax, and Warner Bros.’ filmed entertainment business belong to
Time Warner Entertainment Company, L.P. (“TWE”"), alimited partnership. Time
Warner owns genera and limited partnership interestsin TWE consisting of 74.49% of
the pro rata priority capital and residua equity capital and 100% of the junior priority
capitd.

Respondent Time Warner is, and at all times relevant herein has been, engaged in
commerce, or in activities affecting commerce, within the meaning of Section 1 of the
Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 12, and Section 4 of the Federd Trade
Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 44.

1. TheMerger

On or about January 10, 2000, Respondents AOL and Time Warner entered into an
Agreement and Plan of Merger regarding the proposed transaction. Under the proposed
transaction, common stockholders of Time Warner will receive 1.5 shares of AOL Time
Warner Inc. (“AOL/Time Warner”) common stock for each share of Time Warner
common stock they hold, and common stockholders of AOL will receive one share of
common stock of AOL/Time Warner for each share of AOL common stock they hold.
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The relevant product market in which to assess the effects of the proposed merger isthe
provision of broadband internet transport service.

B. Relevant Geographic Markets

The relevant geographic markets in which to assess the effects of the proposed merger
are Time Warner cable service areas and the United States.

C. Concentration

The relevant markets are, or are likely to become, highly concentrated and the proposed
merger, if consummated, will substantially increase that concentration.

D. Conditions of Entry

Entry into the relevant markets would not be timely, likely, or sufficient to prevent the
anticompetitive effects of the merger.

E. Effects

The merger will substantialy lessen or reduce competition between cable television
broadband transport service and DSL broadband transport service nationally and in Time
Warner cable service areas, and increase AOL/Time Warner’s ability to exercise
unilateral market power.

COUNT 1II: LOSSOF COMPETITION IN
THE PROVISION OF ITV SERVICE

Paragraphs 1-19 are incorporated by reference asif fully set forth herein.

A. Relevant Product Market

The relevant product market in which it is appropriate to assess the effects of the
proposed merger isthe provision of ITV service.

B. Relevant Geographic Markets

The relevant geographic marketsin which it is appropriate to assess the effects of the
proposed merger are the Time Warner cable service areas and the United States.

C. Concentration

The relevant markets are, or are likely to become, highly concentrated and the proposed
merger, if consummated, will substantially increase that concentration.



D. Conditions of Entry

36.  Entry into the relevant markets would not be timely, likely, or sufficient to prevent the
anticompetitive effects of the merger.

E. Effects

37.  Themerger will increase barriersto entry and increase AOL/Time Warner’s ability to
exercise unilatera market power nationally and in Time Warner cable service aress.

V1. Violations Charged

38.  The agreement entered into between Respondents AOL and Time Warner for their
merger constitutes aviolation of Section 5 of the Federa Trade Commission Act, as
amended, 15 U.S.C. § 45. Further, the agreement, if consummated, would be aviolation
of Section 5 of the Federd Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 45, and
Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 18.

WHEREFORE, THE PREMISES CONSIDERED, the Federal Trade Commission on this
fourteenth day of December, 2000, issues its complaint against said Respondents.

By the Commission.

Donad S. Clark
Secretary

[SEAL]



